
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Rochdale North Township Committee 

Date: Wednesday, 10th February, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom Meeting  

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  3 - 6 

 Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 

the 10th November 2020.  

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

5   Open Forum   

 Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to 

raise any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 

Township. 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Link4Life   

 An update/presentation on the work that is being carried out in the 

local community by Link4Life. 

 

7   Draft Lower Falinge Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)  7 - 17 

 To approve the attached report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving 

Economy / Director of Economy 

 

8   Cutgate Shopping Precinct Car Park, Edenfield Road, Rochdale  18 - 25 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving 

Economy/ Director of Economy 

 

 

Rochdale North Township Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Wendy Cocks 
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Kieran Heakin 
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Rachel Massey 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Faisal Rana 
Councillor Shah Wazir Councillor Peter Winkler 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Nazam Suleman 
 
01706 924834 
nazam.suleman@rochdale.gov.uk 



ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 10th November 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillor O’Neill (in the Chair); Councilllors Sultan Ali, Cocks, 
Gartside, Heakin, Rana, Wazir and Winkler. 
 
OFFICERS: F. Davies (Children’s Directorate), G. Finch (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate), A. Shepherd-Smith (Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson 
(Resources Directorate). 
 

16 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ali Ahmed, Iftikhar 
Ahmed, Holly and Massey. 
 

17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

18 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale North Township Committee, held 
9th September 2020, be approved as a correct record. 
 

19 OPEN FORUM 
There were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
Prior to the meeting Members of the Committee received a written update on 
events and activities across the Rochdale North Township Rochdale’s town 
centre area, which was provided by Inspector Meena Yasin of Greater 
Manchester Police (GMP). 
 
The update highlighted that the GMP’s priorities in recent months had been to 
contribute to the Greater Manchester and national efforts to manage the 
issues and demand generated by the Covid-19 Pandemic.  Partnership work 
between GMP and Rochdale Council was described as excellent, with weekly 
meetings to share information, to offer advice/guidance and joint enforcement 
opportunities which has included issuing warnings and prohibition notices. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic had interrupted GMP’s 'business as usual' activities 
and had added additional pressures and demands on policing. However, 
GMP’s Neighbourhood teams, operating in the Rochdale North Township, had 
carried out the following key activities: 

1. Burglary initiatives across Bamford and Norden in October 2020 
involving the whole neighbourhood team, with high visibility patrols and 
plain clothes officers looking to disrupt and detect criminality. 

2. One burglar was convicted at Court from the Spotland area. 
3. Operation Dragster (Norden and Spotland Wards) – an off-road bike 

initiative on moorlands north of Rochdale. Several vehicles were seized 
and the activities of various criminal gangs were disrupted. This was 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



seen as a successful example of partnership working and it saw the 
active involvement of the local community via a ‘what’s-app’ group - 
one of several ideas GMP were utilising to try to reduce crime and ant-
social behaviour problems. 

4. Community Speed-watches were conducted during the ‘lockdown’ 
period and most recently were used to target motorists across the 
Township. 

5. A new homewatch schemes were established in Prickshaw and 
Broadley Fold (Spotland beat). 

6. Drugs warrants/searches were conducted at several locations across 
the Township and several cannabis farms were dismantled as a result. 

7. 120,000 cigarettes (worth approximately £50,000) were recovered and 
two males arrested following an intervention by local PCSO's. 

8. Operation Treacle - Patrols around fireworks/bonfires and associated 
ant-social behaviour. 

9. A well-known local drug dealer and burglar was arrested after illegally 
riding a quad bike and being in possession of drugs in the Spotland 
area. 

10. A male was arrested for robbery in the Spotland area and another male 
was arrested and convicted for burglaries carried out in Norden. 

 
Resolved: 
That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and welcomed. 

 
20 SITES OF BIOLOGICAL IMPORTANCE UPDATE 

The Committee received a report of the Director of Economy that sought 
approval for the designation of Sites of Biological Importance (SBIs) within the 
Rochdale North Township. SBI’s are local planning designations which cover 
areas of nature conservation importance across Greater Manchester 
containing locally valuable habitats, plants and animals. Whilst they were not 
statutory designations, like Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) or 
Conservation Areas, and therefore did not provide legal protection, they could 
be taken into consideration when determining planning applications which 
may affect the site and its nature conservation interest. 
 
New SBIs and changes to existing SBIs were recommended on an annual 
basis by the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) and as such were 
reported to the relevant Township Committee in order that they may be 
adopted for planning purposes. 
 
The latest review which GMEU had undertaken had recommended that the 
existing Naden Brook SBI be extended to include 1.1 hectares of additional 
woodland habitat in the north of the site. Naden Brook lost 0.1ha for technical 
reasons. Overall therefore the site gained 1ha. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The alternative would be to not support the proposed changes to the SBIs, 
which would leave some important areas of habitat more vulnerable to 
damage from development in the area or nearby. 
 

Page 4



Resolved: 
The extensions to the SBIs, so that the nature conservation interests of the 
new areas can be taken into account, when planning applications which may 
affect those interests are being considered, as outlined in the report, be 
approved. 
 
Reasons for the resolution: 
The National Planning Policy Framework states that planning decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by, 
amongst other things, protecting and enhancing valued sites of biodiversity 
value. The areas in question have duly been identified by experts as being of 
local biodiversity value and efforts should therefore be made to try and protect 
this value by taking it into account during the determination of planning 
decisions. 
 

21 NEED FOR PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2021 - 2024 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Children’s Services which 
detailed the need for primary school places across the Borough between 2021 
and 2024. It was reported that a peak in births for the 2021/22 Primary school 
intake birth rates appeared to be levelling off and there had been a 
subsequent reduction of numbers in some area of the Borough. However in-
year applications for school places continued to be high with the usual rate of 
key stage 1 (age 5 - 7 years) and increased numbers arriving at Year 3 and 
above.  
 
Large numbers of new housing developments across the Borough, in the last 
few years, had impacted on the ability of the Council’s school admissions 
team to provide school places in schools of preference, especially so in 
certain localities.  
 
Forthcoming and planned housing developments especially in the Pennines, 
South Rochdale, Middleton and Heywood parts of the Borough meant that 
some expansion of the school estate would continue to be needed. In some 
places inability to further extend schools would require that new schools be 
built. Where a new school and site was being delivered through developer 
contributions, a trust will be needed to run the school and the ‘Free School 
Presumption Route’ would need to be followed.  
 
The Committee was advised that this report was presented to the Cabinet, at 
its meeting held 29th September 2020, where the recommendations contained 
therein, were approved. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

22 SECONDARY SCHOOL PLACES 2021 AND 2022 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Children’s Services 
regarding the provision of secondary school places in the Borough in 2021 
and 2022. Rochdale Council it was reported is awaiting delivery of two new 
mainstream Secondary schools that were being delivered by the Department 

Page 5



for Education (DfE), through the Free School Programme. The DfE would not 
guarantee when the schools will open until planning consent for the schools is 
guaranteed and until a date for practical completion is set. Until the dates are 
determined the Council must work to meet its statutory obligation to offer 
every child living in the borough a place in Secondary school.  
 
The Council’s School’s Organisation and Development Team are working 
closely with the DfE to deliver the new schools as soon as possible but must 
also plan for the scenario where any new school places are delayed.  
 
The Committee was advised that this report was presented to the Cabinet, at 
its meeting held 29th September 2020, where the recommendations contained 
therein, were approved. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

Page 6



 

Report to Rochdale NorthTownship 
 

 

Date of Meeting 10 February 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment 

Report Author Wayne Poole 
Public Document  

 

 

Draft Lower Falinge Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 A draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been produced for the 

Lower Falinge area to support the continued regeneration and renewal of the 
area by providing detailed planning and design advice. This report seeks 
approval to begin consultation on the draft SPD as the next key stage in the 
process before it can be formally adopted.  

 

Recommendation 

2.1 
 
 

 The draft SPD is approved for public consultation for a period of at least 
four weeks to seek the views and comments of the public and key 
stakeholders. 

 That the Head of Planning is given delegated authority (subject to 
discussion with the Portfolio Holder) to make any final minor amendments 
to the draft SPD prior to the commencement of the formal consultation 
period (including presentational and factual changes). 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 As set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning 

Practice Guidance, Supplementary Planning Documents build upon and 
provide more detailed advice or guidance on the policies in the Local Plan. 
Regulations 11 to 16 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 set out the requirements for producing SPDs. 
Regulation 12 requires that consultation is undertaken prior to the adoption of 
an SPD. 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
 
4.1 
 

Background 
 
Lower Falinge has been recognised as needing investment in order to provide 
the tenants and residents with a better mix and quality of homes and better 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
4.9 
 
 

opportunities. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) commissioned Levitt 
Bernstein and GVA (now Avison Young) in early 2017 to produce a 
Masterplan for an area that included Lower Falinge to explore possible 
options for long term investment in the area. 
 
A Draft SPD for a wider area was produced and consulted on in 2019.  
However, as a result of comments raised during consultation in respect of part 
of the area covered by that SPD it was decided that the document would be 
amended to remove that area from the document before consultation was 
undertaken on a revised document.  
 
As such, the Draft SPD now relates to an area principally focussed on the 
Lower Falinge estate and the land to the east up to Whitworth Road.  The 
boundary on the area covered by the SPD is shown on the map within the 
Draft SPD.   
  
Participation and consultation so far 
 
The RBH Masterplan was subject to consultation with residents and 
businesses’ within the area. The public consultation process included the 
distribution of leaflets, drop-in sessions and workshops in order to introduce 
various development options. To date there have been a series of public 
workshops from 2017 to date, attended by the local community, stakeholders 
and Members. These  workshops, which have helped to inform the key aims 
and objectives of the neighbourhood and to develop the options for future 
investment.  Although this consultation did include areas that are no longer 
within the SPD boundary, the feedback in relation to Lower Falinge area is 
still considered relevant in terms of this SPD More detail on this is set out in 
the consultation statement. 
.  
Purpose of a SPD 
 
The proposed SPD will provide a development strategy for the Lower Falinge 
area. It outlines potential development opportunities within the area including 
options for the scale and mix of future proposals on a number of different 
sites.  The SPD will provide further detailed guidance in order to achieve 
coherent and comprehensive development within the area and ensure the 
delivery of the necessary new infrastructure. 
 
The SPD includes clear reference to ensure that investment and investment 
at Lower Falinge is linked to the wider Rochdale Town Centre regeneration 
programme. The Masterplan was developed in the context of ensuring that 
investment in this location contributes to a stronger and more diverse 
residential market to support ambitions for the Town Centre.  
 
The SPD will be used by the Council as a material consideration when 
determining future planning applications. 
 
The SPD elaborates upon policies within the Rochdale Core Strategy (2016),  
The SPD will therefore provide further detail on how relevant policies in the 
Local Plan will be applied to the sites and principles for how development of 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the sites would best be taken forward. Notably policy C2 – Focusing on 
regeneration areas and economic growth corridors/areas, specifically part 7. 
‘Falinge, Spotland and Sparth, Rochdale, where we will improve the 
residential environment including new high quality housing where 
opportunities occur’.  
 
The Supplementary Planning Document content  
 
The following is a summary of the content and structure within the consultation 
draft SPD: 
 

Introduction, vision, 
purpose and status 
of the SPD and 
relationship to 
previous masterplan 

Explains why the SPD has been produced and how 
it is structured.  It also sets out how this SPD relates 
to the previous masterplanning work in the wider 
area.   

Background, 
planning policy 
framework, relevant 
plans and strategies 

Sets out the broad policy framework that applies to 
the site, highlights the main Local Plan policies and 
relevant key plans and strategies that have informed 
the SPD. 
 

Development 
Context  

Describes the SPD area and provides a spatial 
portrait of the site. It also looks at the relationship 
with the adjoining areas. 
 

Development 
Principles 

Establishes the principles and parameters to guide 
future development for the next 10-15 years in the 
surrounding area. Specifically looking at: 

 Connectivity and Movement  

 Streets and Public Realm  

 Public open spaces and play provision 

 Non-residential uses and new facilities 

 New and improved homes 

 Sustainable development 

Design Principles Sets out an approach for landowners to follow when 
designing their schemes which will help ensure a 
high standard of design comes forward. Specifically 
looking at: 

 Access and movement 

 Open spaces  

 Mixed uses 

 Heights and massing 

Transport and 
Access 

Explains what connections are required within the 
SPD area and how transport issues will be 
considered in policy terms. 
 

Focus areas Sets out four broad areas of focus – each with 
different development considerations and guidance 
suitable for that area. It also sets out principles for 
the form and the types of uses which would be 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 

permitted within the potential focus areas, such as 
improving and creating new connections and public 
spaces, consideration of some level of clearance 
within areas with long term sustainability issues, 
providing a mix of types and styles of homes for the 
community. 
 
The four focus areas are: 

 Abbeydale Road 

 Redcross Road 

 St. Mary’s Gate 

 Future area of focus 
 

Delivery and 
Implementation 

Explains how the development and infrastructure set 
out in the SPD is needed to support it will be secured 
and delivered.   

 
Next Steps 
 
If approved for consultation, it is proposed that the draft SPD and associated 
documents will be subject to public consultation for a period of at least four 
weeks to start as soon practicably possible following approval.   
 
The Council will publicise on the website and in any other ways considered 
appropriate in line with the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI) which takes account of current advice in relation consultation during the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Details of how to make representations and the date by 
which those representations must be received will also be publicised.   
 
Following this public consultation, all the comments and representations will 
be considered, and, where necessary, changes will be made to the SPD.  A 
further report will be produced for members to approve and adopt the final 
SPD.   
 
Alternatives considered 
 
If this SPD is not progressed it will undermine a co-ordinated place making 
strategy for Lower Falinge; instead having to deal with this via stand-alone 
planning applications. Proposals for investment and development would 
have to be considered on a piecemeal basis, rehousing residents within the 
local area, close to their existing home and the Town Centre, would become 
challenging, and housing market failure will not be addressed. There is the 
risk that the opportunity for a significant number of new homes within this 
area, adjacent to the Town Centre, is not delivered.  
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the 

recommendations within this report or for the Council’s involvement in the 

Page 10



process at this stage. Consultation costs will be covered by existing an 
planning budget.   

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 

There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 
report. 
 
 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 If the draft SPD is approved, the Council will publicise and consult for a 

period of at least four weeks to begin as soon as practicably possible 
following approval. During this time the application and supporting 
information will be published in accordance with the Council’s SCI.   
 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Draft College Bank and Lower 
Falinge area SPD 
 
Consultation Statement 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 

To be circulated prior to meeting 

 

For Further Information Contact: Paul Moore, Head of Planning Services 
paul.moore@rochdale.gov.uk  
 
Wayne Poole, Principal Planning Officer  
wayne.poole@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
 

  
 

 
 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
 

Draft Lower Falinge Area 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK  
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is a measure that public authorities often carry out prior 
to implementing a policy, with a view to ascertaining its potential impact on equality. Such 
assessments are not required by law, although are a way of facilitating and evidencing 
compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
This Equalities Impact Assessment has been prepared as a supporting document for the College 
Bank and Lower Falinge Area Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).  
 
The SPD has been produced to support and guide appropriate development, change, investment 
and improvements in the future of the area over the next 10 to 15 years. 
 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment and Target Groups 
 
The purpose of this Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure the proposed SPD for College Bank 
and Lower Falinge Area integrates the best outcome for those affected by spatial development 
and mitigates any negative impacts, in respect of the protected characteristics defined by the 
Equality Act 2010. These are: 
 

 Age; 

 Disability; (Disability Discrimination Act 2005, GLA Disability Equality Scheme 2005, 
Special Educational Needs and Disability Act 2001) 

 Gender reassignment; 

 Marriage and civil partnership; 

 Pregnancy and maternity; 

 Race; (Race Relations Act 1976, Amendment 2000, Amendment Regulations 2003) 

 Religion or belief; 

 Sex; (Sex Discrimination Act 1975); and 

 Sexual orientation. 
 

This EqIA is an opportunity to consider whether a policy, strategy or approach, affects all groups 
in the same way or whether there are is a significant positive, negative or neutral impact on 
particular groups before a policy is formally introduced. 
 
On the whole, EqIAs should make sure that equality is placed at the centre of policy 
development, highlighting the likely impact of the policy on the target groups and to take action to 
improve the policies where appropriate as a result or to demonstrate the potential benefits. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
Appendix 1 Equality Impact Proforma 
 

Department  Strategic Planning  Section  
Economy 

Person responsible 
for the assessment  

Wayne Poole  

Name of the 
Policy to be 
assessed  

Lower Falinge Area 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD)  

Date of 
Assessment  

22/1/21 Is this a new 
or existing 
policy  

Expanding on Core 
Strategy policies 
C/2. 

1. Describe the aims, objectives 
and purpose of the policy  

The draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been prepared to guide planning 
decisions relating to the Lower Falinge area. The purpose of this Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) is to provide a development strategy for the Lower Falinge area. It outlines 
potential development opportunities within the area including options for the scale and mix of 
future proposals on a number of different sites through: 

 a better quality and mix of housing choice to meet the needs of the community now and 
in the future;  

 a safe neighbourhood where attractive, energy efficient homes  combine with well-
proportioned streets, open spaces and landscaping to create distinctive and sustainable 
high density design including new residential development along with the opportunity for 
some complimentary non-residential uses, such as community facilities;   

 an accessible neighbourhood with pedestrian and cycle friendly links and routes within 
and across the area and strong connections with the wider surrounding areas including 
Rochdale Town Centre;   

 high quality public and green spaces which enhance the existing outdoor environment 
and recreational activities for people of all ages; and  

 a neighbourhood which manages the public spaces and creates opportunities for social 
interaction and activities. 

 
 

2. Are there any associated 
objectives of the policy, please 
explain  

The SPD supports the main objectives set out within the Masterplan prepared on behalf of 
Rochdale Borough wide Housing and includes a programme of significant consultation with the 
local community and local partners.  It identified a range of interventions required to address the 
mix (type and tenure) and quality of homes available, physical appearance of the area including 
quality and design of the public spaces, better access and connectivity within the area and to the 
Town Centre and surround areas, and a safer and mixed neighbourhood offering a range of 
community and shopping facilities to facilitate wider regeneration and contribute positively to 

P
age 14



housing market improvement 

 
Also, Rochdale Council undertook a study to review pedestrian accessibility between the Lower 
Falinge and College Bank area and Rochdale Town Centre, the Educational Quarter and 
Rochdale Infirmary to the North.  The study identified a number of issues and opportunities 
relating to movement between the areas.  It investigated potential solutions to improve 
pedestrian connections.  Opportunities for intervention were established and presented as a 
number of projects ranging from improved signage, junctions improvements, pedestrianisation, 
and green routes to traffic management. 

 
Although this work and the masterplan did cover a wider area including College Bank it is 
important to note that this SPD now only considers the Lower Falinge area and some adjoining 
land to the east. 
 
 

 

3. Who is intended to benefit from 
the policy and in what way  

Private Individuals, Community and Interest Groups, Stakeholders, Land Owners, Developers, 
Councillors, Rochdale Council Officers.  
 

4. What outcomes are wanted 
from this policy?  

It seeks an efficient and effective land use policy which ensures that new development adds to 
and supports the regeneration of Lower Falinge.  The area mainly comprises of residential 
buildings but does also include some pockets of other land use and buildings. Better quality 
information submitted with planning applications to assist the development control processes 
and the implementation of the Core Strategy policy.  

5. What factors/forces could 
contribute/detract from the 
outcomes?  

If funding or resources were withdrawn. 
Unforeseen/unavoidable circumstances.  
Complexity of topic. 

6. Who are 
the main 
stakeholders 
in relation to 
the policy  

Rochdale Borough 
wide Housing, 
Rochdale Council, 
Private Individuals, 
Community and 
Interest Groups, 
Stakeholders, Land 
Owners, 
Developers.  

7. Who implements the policy and 
who is responsible for the policy?  

Development Management.  
Strategic Planning.  
 
 

P
age 15



 
8. Are there concerns that the policy 
could have a differential impact on 
racial groups?  

Y
  

N  The SPD objectives generally responds well with all racial groups in the defined area in 
respect of access to public open spaces, new and improved housing, community facilities, 
accessibility etc.  All groups in this area will benefit from this and help achieve a high 
quality development. 

9. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact due to gender? 

Y  N  It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group. 
  

10. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact due disability? 

Y  N  This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality 
environment for all users, a suitable mix of tenures, sizes and types developed in order to 
meet local needs over the long term and create a sustainable community.  In addition, it 
seeks to improve and modernise the quality of some overall residential environment.  
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group. 

11. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to sexual 
orientation? 

Y  N  It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group. 
 

12. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to their age? 

Y  N  This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality 
environment for all users, a suitable mix of tenures, sizes and types developed in order to 
meet local needs over the long term and create a sustainable community.  In addition, it 
seeks to improve and modernise the quality of some overall residential environment.  
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group. 

13. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to their 
religious belief? 

Y  N  This SPD seeks appropriate levels of community facilities and services to support new 
development in order to serve the area as a whole.  Where community facilities include 
places of worship.   
 
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group. 
 

14. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to them being 
in a marriage or civil partnership? 

Y  N  It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group. 
 

15. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people who are pregnant 
or on maternity? 

Y  N  It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group. 
 

P
age 16



16. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to their 
gender reassignment? 

Y  N  It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group. 
 

17. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to them being 
a carer? 

Y N This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality 
environment for all users, a suitable mix of tenures, sizes and types developed in order to 
meet local needs over the long term and create a sustainable community.  In addition, it 
seeks to improve and modernise the quality of some overall residential environment.  
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group. 

18. Are there concerns that the 
policy could have a differential 
impact on people due to them being 
serving / ex serving members of the 
armed forces 

Y N This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality 
environment for all users, a suitable mix of tenures, sizes and types developed in order to 
meet local needs over the long term and create a sustainable community.  In addition, it 
seeks to improve and modernise the quality of some overall residential environment.  
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group. 

 

19. Could the differential impact identified in 8-16 
amount to there being the potential for adverse 
impact in this policy  

YES  NO   

20. Can this adverse impact be justified on the 
grounds of promoting equality of opportunity for 
one group? Or any other reason  

YES  NO  Please explain for each equality 
heading (question 8-16) on a separate 
piece of paper  

21. Should the policy proceed to a partial 
impact assessment  

YES  NO  22. If Yes, is there 
enough evidence to 
proceed to a full EIA  

YES  NO  

 
Signed (completing officer) Wayne Poole   Signed (Lead Officer) Paul Moore  
 
 

P
age 17



 

Report to Rochdale North Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 10 February 2021 
 

Portfolio A Thriving Economy 
 

Report Author Peter Gregory 
 

Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Cutgate Shopping Precinct Car Park, Edenfield Road, Rochdale 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 

 
This report is not asking Township Committee to make a decision; it is 
seeking the views of the Committee in order that those views might 
subsequently inform a decision of Cabinet. 
 

1.2 A substantial part of the car park and associated landscaping at Cutgate 
Shopping Centre, as shown edged on the attached plan, is held by 
Rochdale Council under a Deed of Dedication.  The Council does not own 
the land, the owners dedicated it in 1976 as an off street car park to be 
maintained for public use at public expense.  
 

1.3 As a free car park, maintenance is the responsibility of the Rochdale North 
Township. The Township has no identified budget in place for these repair 
and maintenance responsibilities, have expressed concern about the 
ongoing maintenance liability and requested the Director of Economy to 
investigate options. 
 

1.4 Following extensive discussions, the owners of Cutgate Shopping Centre 
are willing to release the Council from the Deed of Dedication. The 
implications of terminating the Deed of Dedication are that the Council will 
no longer face the cost and indemnity liabilities arising from the car park, but 
will also lose control of the way the car park is managed. 
 

 As a disposal of the Council’s interest in the property the surrender of the 
Deed of Dedication can be approved on one of two ways: 

i. If all Ward Councillors and Township Chair agree to the disposal, the 
matter can be determined by the delegated authority of the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance. 

ii. If any of the Ward Councillors or Township Chair withhold approval, 
the matter needs to be determined by Cabinet. 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



1.5 As approval for the proposal has not been granted by all four Member 
consultees, it is intended to present the matter to the next convenient 
Cabinet meeting for consideration. However, the views of the Township are 
required to inform Cabinet’s decision-making. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 

 
It is recommended that: 
 

i. In order to inform Cabinet of the Township Committee’s views, 
Rochdale North Township decides whether or not to support the 
proposed surrender of the Deed of Dedication. 
 

ii. In the event that the Township Committee wishes the Deed of 
Dedication to be retained, Rochdale North Township Committee 
advises Cabinet, for its consideration, whether or not it is willing to 
fund the ongoing estimated maintenance costs, as set out in 
paragraph 5.3. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 The car park at Cutgate Shopping Centre is a source of complaints and 

insurance claims due to its poor state of repair.  The Council has been 
forced to find money from various budgets to carry out patch repairs.  
 

3.2 The budgetary responsibility for maintenance rests with Rochdale North 
Township Committee. Should the Committee decide it wishes the car park to 
remain dedicated to the public it will be committing itself to funding 
maintenance costs in perpetuity. It is acknowledged that the Township 
Committee has had difficulties in committing the required funds in the past. 
 

3.3 If Rochdale North Township is willing and able to commit itself to funding the 
car park maintenance in perpetuity, this report can be withdrawn. A Cabinet 
decision is appropriate in the event that the Township Committee wishes to 
request corporate funding for this purpose. 
 

3.4 The owners of the shopping centre are prepared to release the Council from 
these ongoing liabilities by accepting a surrender of the Deed of Dedication. 
Following protracted negotiations the owners have also agreed to drop their 
demand that the Council should bring the condition of the car park up to 
pristine standards, which would have cost the Council in excess of £50,000. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 

 
Part of the car park and landscaping at Cutgate Shopping Centre was 
dedicated by the owner to public use in November 1976.  Under the terms of 
the Deed the car park is to be maintained by the Council at public expense. 
 

4.2 The car park is falling into disrepair and is costing the Council increasing 
amounts of money, as set out in Section 5.1.  As long as the Deed of 
Dedication remains in place the management and maintenance of the car 

Page 19



park is the responsibility of the Township as an unregulated car park. There 
is no dedicated Township or corporate budget for the repair and 
maintenance work. 
 

4.3 The Council has faced the threat of legal action due to the periodic 
deteriorating condition of the car park. If the Council is unable to identify a 
dedicated budget for routine maintenance and a periodic capital budget for 
more extensive works there is a risk of injury or damages as a result of 
uneven surfaces. 
 

4.4 The owners are willing to release the Council from this Deed of Dedication 
and have dropped their pre-condition that the Council should carry out 
maintenance works costing in the region of £50,000. 
 

 
4.5 

Alternatives Considered 
Rochdale North Township could decide that the Deed of Dedication remains 
in place in which case funds will need to be available for annual 
maintenance to the estimated sum of £5,000 per annum and/or a periodic 
and larger capital sum. The car park could remain with the Council and 
future public use would be secured.  However, the council would not be able 
to do anything with the site, would remain liable for its repair and 
maintenance and would be vulnerable to claims for damage or injury. The 
borough has a number of similar multi-unit shopping precincts, but there are 
no other instances where the Council has retained either dedication to public 
use or maintenance liabilities. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 

 
Over the last 6 years the Council has incurred the following costs to 
maintain the car park, the landscaping and to undertake the associated 
waste management: 
 

 Year Township AMG Environmental 
Management 

2020/21 £415.00  £1,900 

2019/20 £3,844.00  £1,900 

2018/19   £1,900 

2017/18  £1,660.00 £1,900 

2016/17  £5,197.00 £1,900 

2015/16  £185.00 £1,900 

 £4,259 £7,042.00 £11,400 
 

  

5.2 It is important to note that the Township and AMG costs have been spent on 
patch-repairing the car park surface or filling in potholes. There will come a 
time when such repairs will no longer be feasible and extensive resurfacing 
works will be required, at an estimated cost (in today’s value) of £50,000. It 
is expected that full resurfacing works will need to be undertaken within five 
years, but not required again for another 25 years. 

 

Page 20



5.3 In view of the above, an estimate as to the future repairing liabilities is as 
follows. Please note, however, that this estimate is subject to a high degree 
of uncertainty, but it should be taken as highly indicative. 

  

 Estimated Costs 

2021/22 £4,000 

2022/23 £4,000 

2023/24 £4,000 

2024/25 £4,000 

2025/26 £52,000 

2026 - 2035 £40,000 

2035 - 2045 £40,000 

2045 - 2055 £90,000 

Total for 
2021 - 2055 

£238,000 
 

 
5.4 

 

Formal budgetary responsibility for the car park lies with Rochdale North 
Township Committee. However, there appears to be some uncertainty as to 
whether Township has the freedom to utilise its funds for the purpose of 
maintaining this car park. Township Funds Terms and Conditions state 
(under “activities that may not be funded") improvements to private land, 
unless there is a demonstrable community benefit. However, it is assumed 
that Township would only wish to retain the car park in public use on the 
basis that there is a demonstrable community benefit. 

 

5.5 Since 2015 Township has agreed funding on three separate occasions 
totalling £7,042 to address health and safety concerns. In 2015 the then 
Rochdale Township Committee was asked to fund a larger scheme at a cost 
of £12,500, the committee declined to do so. 
 

5.6 Members are asked to note that the majority of the £1,900 per annum spent 
on landscaping maintenance and waste disposal would be a non-cashable 
saving to the council if the scheme goes ahead as it represents only a small 
percentage of a street services team’s time. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Retaining the Deed of Dedication in place will ensure the car park is 

managed for the public good, but there is a risk that it will continue to be a 
financial drain on the Council’s resources and that the condition of the car 
park may leave the Council exposed to third party claims for damage or 
injury. 
 

6.2 Surrendering the Deed of Dedication will mean that the precinct owners will 
be able to choose how to manage the car park and landscaped areas.  
 
It would be speculation to consider how the owners might apply their control 

Page 21



over the car park, but they are unlikely to prohibit or restrict public use, or to 
increase customer inconvenience, in conjunction with the shops and GP 
Practice. They would be free to restrict or to prohibit use for other purposes, 
eg time limits, with the possibility of enforcement measures in place. There 
is also a likelihood that the costs of car park maintenance will be passed on 
to the tenants through the service charges on the precinct. 
 

6.2 It is unlikely that the owners would seek to implement pay and display 
charges. Although this cannot be completely ruled out as a possibility, it is in 
the owners’ interests to ensure maximum convenience to shoppers, whilst 
discouraging uses of the car park that make it more difficult for shoppers to 
access the precinct.  
 

6.4 It appears that the car park is routinely and regularly used by local residents 
and, presumably, by staff and customers of nearby businesses, which will 
include Cutgate Baptist Church. Depending on any restrictions on parking 
that might be introduced, this use could be curtailed (eg by the use of 
maximum parking time limits), although there is nothing to prevent local 
residents and businesses outside the precinct seeking to negotiate private 
terms for their use of the car park. There is, however, a risk that members of 
the community may be unable to use the car park in future for uses other 
than a shopping trip. 
 

6.5 The dedicated area includes part of the landscaping areas. The Council 
would therefore no longer have the costs of maintaining the landscaping, 
nor of providing waste management services, but would also lose rights of 
access and use, which would impact upon, eg the Rochdale in Bloom 
display. 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 Consultation has taken place with the Spotland & Falinge Ward Councillors 

and the Township Chair. In accordance with the process for the disposal of 
Council assets the proposal to surrender the Deed of Dedication must be 
approved by all four of those members, otherwise the matter will be decided 
by Cabinet. The approval of three of the consultees has been received. 
However, approval has been withheld by one member; a summary of the 
reservations about the proposal is included in the appendix to this report 
and this report has sought to address the concerns raised. As things stand, 
the matter now needs to be considered by Cabinet, and this report is to 
undertake final consultation with, and to obtain key views of the Township 
Committee before that referral.  
 

7.2 Consultation has taken place with: 

 Ward Councillors 

 Township Chair 

 Officers in Legal Services, Planning, Highways and Environmental 
Management. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

Page 22



8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: peter.gregory@rochdale.gov.uk 

 
  

Page 23



 
APPENDIX: SUMMARY OF MEMBER RESERVATIONS 
 
Further information requested on just what losing control of the way the car park is 
managed means. 
 
Concern that there are several excellent small businesses on that site that could 
become indirectly liable for the expense of maintaining the car park.  
 
There are visitors to the Health Centre that may be unable to park, and there is also 
regular community activities and services at the church which could also be put at 
risk if parking is not possible.  
 
Should the land owners subsequently introduce a charge for parking, residents 
nearby may be inconvenienced by inappropriate parking by visitors to these 
premises avoiding the fee, or other restrictions. 
 
With the introduction of no waiting restrictions on Edenfield Rd in 2017 this car park 
was suggested as a suitable place to park for a number of residents who would lose 
parking near their home. 

 
Please provide breakdown of costs incurred for repair and maintenance in the past 
five years.  
 

 

Page 24



 

150.3m

2

GROVE

3

El Sub Sta

S
T

R
E

E
T

2

1
6

8
6

9
4

16

14

UPPER PASSMONDS

11

51

15

Bowling Green

17

13

15a

39

28

C
A

T
C

H
E

S
 L

A
N

E

29

2
7

20

LYNNWOOD DRIVE

1
9

11

350

342

B
A

IL
D

O
N

 R
O

A
D

1

WHALLEY GARDENS

293

14a

2
9
1

2
8
5

EDENFIELD ROAD

257

340

259

1
3

1

2

2
5

1
5

1
8

1
9

10

2

Shelter

Shelters

360

388

155.4m

384

3

307

Church

Cutgate

Baptist

390
394

317

Centre

Health

400
410

1
1

8

1
4

2

1
3
0

347
337

9

1
1

1
3

1
1
a

9a

7

Cutgate Shopping Centre 2437.36 sq mt or
thereabouts

Scale 1:1250

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

Based on the Ordnance Survey mapping with
the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Rochdale BC LA076279 2020.

Page 25


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Draft Lower Falinge Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
	Append. 2 for Draft Lower Falinge Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

	8 Cutgate Shopping Precinct Car Park, Edenfield Road, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Cutgate Shopping Precinct Car Park, Edenfield Road, Rochdale


